
 

Downtown Development Authority of City of Madison Heights 
 

Memorandum 
 

Date:  September 15, 2023 
 
To:  Downtown Development Authority Board Members 
 
From:  Giles Tucker, Community Development Director  
 
Subject: Sign & Façade Grant for 947 W 11 Mile Diamond Jim’s Carriage House 
 

  
Background & Eligibility 
 
Melany Verniers from Diamond Jim’s has applied for a façade and sign grant for the improvement of the 
“carriage house” building within the parking lot of their jewelry store at 934 W 11 Mile Rd. These two 
buildings share the same parcel. In May 2021 the DDA approved the façade improvement grant for the 
Diamond Jim’s jewelry store for a total of $5,000. The proposed project for the carriage house includes a 
new awning, cultured stone, vinyl siding and a new storm door. The intent is to match this “out-build-
ing” with the main store.  
 
After reviewing the “Sign portion” of this project staff has determined that the project meets all the eli-
gibility requirements of the program and its guidelines. The project is proposing a sign area that meets 
requirements of both our sign ordinance and the sign grant guidelines. While Diamond Jim’s received a 
sign grant in 2005, the program guidelines only require that a business not received two sign grants 
within a 10-year period. The total cost for installation excluding permitting and taxes has been quoted at 
$4,400. 
 
The bulk of the “façade portion” eligible costs for this project include demolition, installation of cultured 
stone, vinyl trim, replacement of the storm door and electrical work associated with updated exterior 
lighting: 
 

- Demo    $700.00  
- Cultured Stone   $1,071.50 
- Vinyl Trim & Storm Door $7,500.00 
- Electrical/Lighting  $2,495.00 

Total: $11,766.50 
 
The current FY23-24 budget includes a total of $5,000 for Sign Grant projects and $10,000 Façade Grant 
projects. While these project activities are eligible according to our existing program guidelines, the Fa-
çade grant guidelines as written limit the applicant to one façade grant per parcel at a maximum reim-
bursement of $5,000. Looking through past façade and sign grant applications a cap of $5,000 for Fa-
çade and $10,000 for Signage has been consistently adhered to.  
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Staff Recommendation 
 
After reviewing this request, I recommend approving the sign grant portion of this request for a maxi-
mum reimbursement of $2,200, which is 50% of the pre-tax cost of the awning excluding permitting 
fees. As far as the Façade grant portion of the request, I would defer to the board’s judgement. If the 
board is inclined to award this project with façade grant funds, I would recommend that they not exceed 
$5,000. Further, I would ask the DDA board to consider whether the existing cap of $5,000 for the Fa-
çade grant should be increased to $10,000.   
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